Clintan County Board of Health Meeting Minutes
August 3, 2021

Board of Health MembearAttending:

Brlan Klostermann, Chalrperson

Terty Linton, SLP, Secretary

Paulatte Fvans, RN, Vice Chalrperson

Robert Hyten ill, DMD, Treasurer i
Cynthla Kues, NP

Kimberly Hugo, RN

Stacy Albers, RN (via ZOOM]

Deanna DuComb, MD

James White-Votlng County Board Member (viaZO0OM)
Deb Wesselmann, Ex Officlo

Bob Netemeyer, Ex Officlo

Mike Strieker, Ex Officlo (via ZOOM)

Also Attending:

Loulse McMinn, CCHD
Marian Voss, CCHD

Brad Knothoff, CCB

Todd Marver, Unlon Banner
M. Buckingham, citlzen

Call to Order
The August 8%, 2021, mestihg of the Clinton County Board of Health was called to order by Dr. Brian

Klostermannat :03 PM at the Clinton County Meatihg Reom, This meeting was also conducted via
ZO0OM for those wishing to attend remotely, ' '

Hearing from the Publle

Heather Behrensaddressed the hoard to state her concerns with Clinton County school students’ mask
mandates. She stated Wesclin has retracted their ‘no mask’ mandate, She noted nelghboringstates
whete she has traveled had no masks. She stated concerns with tha humber of students sent home
from school due to cohcerns with COVID concerns, antd the setbacksin thelreducation and mental
health dueto that, She asks whatthe ‘end game’ Is? These are things she has naverseenbefore, She
stated statistles from the IDPH website In terms of the numbers of deathsin children, She noted the
children nead tobea unmasked to limprove thelr learning. She feelswe (the county}is compating
curselves to Cank County, tather than ather countles like us.

Katle Peters, arecentmove in cltizen from Collinsville, addressedthe board to state heragreamant with
Heather Behrens, noting that If her three chlldren are expested to mask, they wlli not be attending

publle sehools, She statad that last year her Sophomore age studentwas severely depressad and falling
school due to Covid,

br, Frank Buckinghamspoke. He feelsthe Board of Health and the Health Department has done agood
joh setving tha community and trylng to protect the publlc health, He feels the hoard and staff knows
the bestIn tetms of what to doto protect the communlttes heeds, He feels vaccinatlons are so




Important and encourages all to get vacelnated. He states we need to use masks forthe bt'otection of
others, He askedall to rememberthatprofessionals on the board and in the health dspartmentare
working In our bestinterest,

Ron Petarsspoke. He states thatwe are not golng to getan accurate 'death numbar’ from COVID, He
stated that Covid deaths are all persons who die with a current infection of Covid, regardless of whether
the virus caused thelr death. He quoted Tom Devore’s words ina Supreme Court case of 1922,
regarding Typhold quarantines, He stated In that case thal no health authorlty has the right to enforce
masks, because It does not preventthe spreadofthe disease,

Tiffany Wesselmann noted that she has B chitdren in the Carlyle Schools, She stated there has been too
much back and forth directives dusing Covid, Shestatedthere are no real answers and hoehe knows
the facts. She stated herfamily doctor doas not advise getting the Covid vacclne. She stated her familly
was nevar tested {swahbed) forthe fluby her famlly doctor, Shestatedthatthe Covid vaceine has not
been FDA approved at this tima, She statad the masls thatcame out of the Grade Schoolat the end of
the day were disgusting—wet, mold, dirty. Herchildren were quarantined severaltimes durlng the
school year, and missed sevaral days of school and eventsthat were taking place, She statedthe

vaccthe doas hotpravent the virus, Sha feels no one has the right answers and she does not trust the
Clinton County Health Department,

Dt, Klostermann addressed the group, He stated the Board of Health Is not a policing bady, 1t does hot
lay down mandatas and it1s nota governing bedy. We will continue to recommend guidance from
1DPH, and othergoverning entlties. We do hot direct schools, and there are no reasons to go against
CDC of IDPH guidance curtently. Asof last week, we had 86 positives, and due to that we will eontlhue

to recommend guldance ofthe CDC and IDPH,  Dr. Kinstermannrelterated that the Board of Haalth
does not make guldellihes forthe schools,

Dr. Hyten noted that he fesis 1t s notgood to mask children and not allow them ko go to school, He
relterated thatschool policles are not oursto make, We don't make healthcare policles, and nalther
toesthe haalth department, The health departmentmust follow the |1DPH guidellines, We have had an
Increase In numbers recently, Dr, Hyten noted thatthere are members of the hoard that agree that
children should not be made to wear masks to school, but the health de partment can not make those
rules. The state plves the departiment monles and we must follow their guidelines, We have notmade
local mandatesregarding Covid, He Is aware of some Indlviduals that have beenvacclnated who have
contracted the virus afterwards,

br, Klostermann noted that the state has been requiring vaccinations for children foryears,
Heather Behrans asked If we could have better data from our county health departmentso the public
could see actual numbers of cases and thelr vacclhation status to make betterdecisions. She stated

parentsfeelthey are having their rights taken from thaim,

Dr. Hyten stated tha health department s here to talk about and supportthe services of health for afl
cltizens.

Cynthia Kues noted we are trying to geta better faclllty to offer mentathealth services, because we sea
the need formental health suppott,




Katle Peters stated the CDChas lost the Amertean peoplas’ trust,

Dr. Hyten stated he will continue to do what tha ADA say to do because his lleense dependsonit. Thera
are entities he cannot go against, He must continue to do whathas heenrecommended by his
govarning professlonal group.

Tiffany Wesselmann noted the new plan of action brought up at the School Board, where unvaccinated
children may have to be vaceinated.

Chils Leldel sald those are the current IDPH guldelines, and those are what we follow and stata to the
local schools.

Tiffany Wesselimann noted she does notunderstand whv vaccihated childran would not have to ha
vacelnataed, since they could get the virus,

Dr, Klostermann noted the chance of getting the virus is 8X mare likely F youare not vaccinated, This ls
the reasonfor the CDC statlng thalr guldeﬂnes He stated GovernorPritzker noted he does nothavea
mask mandate planned.

Loulse McMinn noted that school plans state masks are recommended but are not mandated, Sha

states that our recommendation willalways allgh with CDC and {DPH, We do not tell schaols that they
needtoregulire masks,

Heather Behrens asked about the quarantine guidelines for the upcaming schaol year?

Lauise McMinn noted thatlast year, there was a seating plan and when there was a positive case, they
would quarantine children seated within 6 feetof each other, There were problemsfastyear with

paople notcompleting health assessments, Shelsunsure of how the schools will be functioning this
vear,

Dr. Klosternmann noted that we do not direct the schools as to how theywill plan for Covid, We do hot
write thelr Covid plan, We are available to asslst the schools in kaepingchildren in schoal, butwe
cahinot tell the schools what to do, we mustsimply relterate what the COC and IDPH states.

He statad thatif our positivity rate was very low {13 In May}, we would hot have to worry, but currently
ourrate s Increasing,

D, Ducoimb noted that chlldren do become il from the virus, butwe don’t know what the Delta vartant
and otheyvariants wilt do to children, This Is why cautlon Is prudent, Virusesevolve anditis hot
ratlonal, so we have to learn as quickly as we can, and address it as It unfolds. She stated pollo closed
down everything. We also do notknow if there ara long term effects of this virus, so we needto
practice caution,

Minutes of the June 8™, 2021 meeting

The June 8% minutes were presehted, CynthiaKues made a motion to appbrove the minutes, seconded
hy Rob Hyten, motion passed unanimously.




Adminlstrative ahd Financlal Report

Chils Leidel reported cash on hand $1,085,272.89, Asof today, we have vacclnated 16,221, 43,1% of our
population, nols has vaccinated 50.42%. We will continue to monitor numbers and add cllnics if
needed based onnumbers, Thara are dinles weekly on Wednasdays. Clinton County positivity rate is
now 12.1%, We have seen asharp tlse since the first of luly,

Doctor Ducomb was voted off the board by the County Board. She will continue to setve until another
Dr. can be found totake hetseat.

The Contract Lease Authority was explained. Itailows Chris to ehterInto grant agreements withthe
state, or lease propertiesif needed, Anymalorchangeswill be broughtto the board.

As of this aftemoon, there are 3 hospitallzatlons, one that was fully vaceinated, 2 who wera not. Dr,
Hyten noted that the publle wants mare detalls about the skek cltizens and those who have dled from 1L,

Loulse McMinn noted we must be careful aboutgiving Information aboutsick citlzens when our cases
ara very low, bacause peaple may knowwho they ara,

Dr, Ducomb noted thatshe was hot conflirmed to continue on the board, Sheis not surewhy, She will
haveto serve untf she Is replaced. There ks a resideney requirement for the Doctors who serve onthe
Board of Health, She stated there were cotinty boatd thembers who contacted county doctors to ask
tham to serve onthe board and theyall declined, She feelsthe County Board needsto understand that
the Board of Healthis not to be politiclzed and the Board of Health and public health Is to setve afi
cltizens of the county. She wants the County Board to facllitate the Board of Health’s progress, notset
roadblocks for them,

Kim Hugo noted that she used to see discord In the newspaper between the County Board and the
Board of Health and it was beginning to Interfere with the public health of the restdants of the county,

The finandial reportwas presentadby Chris Leldel. A motion wasmade by Paulette Evang, secohded hy
Dr, Ducamb, motion passad Unanimously,

New Business

A. Annual Report .
Chris Lelde! prasanted the annualreport. Amotlonwas made by Dr. Hyten, seconded by Kim
Hugo, to approve the report, Motlon passed unanimously.

B. IPLAN
Chrls Leldel presented the Iplan lnwiltihg. 1t was generated hased ona publle survey to doctors
and citlzens of the county via survey monkey on the website,
A motlon was made by Paulette Fvans, seconded by Kim Hugo. Metlon passed tinanimously. Dr,
Hyten stated that the information Included In the Iplan was interestihg and asked if the public
could have access, Chils responded(theeds tobe approved by the state, and then it can be put
on the wehsite for public view,




Old Business

A. Bullding Committea Update
Dr, Ducomb presented the bulldihg committes minutes of June 16, 2021. Those minutes are attached,
Dr, Hyten and Paulette Evans commented thata separate entrance for mentalhealth is a bad Idea-we
can manage privacy ohee individuals are In the bullding and taken to the appropriate area,
Rob Hyten noted that the size of the building should be based on meeting heeds, not on cost ot
avallabiiity of funds. We need to make declsions based on the neads of our difzens and work with the
County Board to getthat done, We need tolook at our expensesin furnishingand equippingthe
butiding, W the County Board owns tha bulding and continues to pay the utllitles, that[s a really good
deal forthe health department. Dr. Hytennoted itis amazing how the staff at the health departinent
functions In thelr currentlocation.

Dr. Ducomb noted the bullding committee meatingwas productive and they will plek another upeoming
date forthe nextcommittee meeting,

Executiva Session

At &:11, a motlon was made by Tarry Linton, seconded by Cynthia Kuas, to enter Into executive session.
Motjon passed unapimously.

The board tame out of executive sesslonat8:29 PM. Dr. Hyten made a motlon to pay the tegal feas for
sattlement of the recent lawsult as long as thereis no need for a previaus amendment to the budgat,
which Chris Leldelwill check on. Paulette Fvans saconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

paulette Evans asked if Dr. Ducomb’s name could be given to the County Chalr again?

James White stated Dr. Ducoib was voted down 10-4, [¢'s upto the chalrman to Issue hamasto the
County Board,

Rob Hylen stated that Dr. Ducomb has asked him If he undarstood why she may have beenvoted down
by the county hoard? He belleves thatan actlon of Dr, Ducomb's In the past caused the County Board to
vote herdown as a retrlbution, Dr, Ducomb will have to serve unti a replacementhas baan found, and
the Health Board |s not the group that must seek the replacement. He feeals nothing the Health Board
stated In termsof our recomimendatlon for the Health Board members was taken Into consid eratton if
there was a unanimous vote from the Health Board followed by a 10-4 nay vote from the County Board.
Jamas White feals |t Is not here to comment oh the votes of other County Board members His role |s to
rapresenthis constituants and they do not wanttaxes to be rafsed The Health Board has ho
accountabillty to the people In the County,

Dr, Hyten hoted that he doesn’twant higher taxes elthet, butfeels the County Board could assistus in
getting the bullding built, butto say the no vate was to protact constituantsIs an overhlown statement.
Dr, Hyten stated wa have not been given a figure of the County Board financtal support of the building,
but he doesn’t feelthat discusston of funding should be a reason to vate down a member of the he alth
board.

James White suggested that M. Hyten run for the elected offlce and be accountable to his constituants,
but that his decislon ls based simply on the concern for his constituants.

Stacy Albers noted that the County Board should considertheir actions based on the helpfulness and
Intent of those serving,

Kim Hugo noted that every membar of the Health Board Is accountable to the pubile.




James White noted that true accountability at the county level is through the votlng process of the
County Board,

Dr. Hyten noted that he wanted to share how he felt about the County Board’s ‘no’ vote,

laras White noted the that In small munidipalities, people frequently do notget put up for re -
appointmentbecause of poor documentation, The process of allowlng a board member toremaln after

nonapproval s because the dosumentation may be late, and this allows the person to remaln on the
board.

Adjournimant

Rob Hyten made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Kim Hugo, Motlon passed unanimousty, The
maeting was adjourned at 8147,




